
REQUEST FOR SEALED BIDS  
MUNICIPAL UTILITIES DEPT LAB SERVICES 
FOR THE CITY OF STOCKTON, CALIFORNIA 

(PUR 15-012) 
 

 
 
POSTED 7-22-15 
THE FOLLOWING INQUIRIES WERE SUBMITTED, WITH CITY RESPONSES 
IN BLUE. 
 
 

1.   Can the cost tables be supplied in an Excel format that can be directly typed 
into?  Spreadsheet has already been provided.  

 

2.   Does the “Estimated Quantities column listed on the price sheets reflect 
what is estimated for the first fiscal year of the contract, an average number 
for the first two years of the contract, or a total number of samples for the 5 
year duration of the contract (2 years + 3x 1yr possible extensions)?  The 
question is based on the Title 22 Drinking Water and Source Water 
Compliance price sheet.  The Estimated Quantity of samples for the 
Lead/Copper test is 110 with a note indicating this total is for 55 samples in 
Yr 2015 and 55 in yr 2018, making this Estimated Quantity line item the sum 
over four years.  Does this hold true for the rest of the Estimated Quantities? 
Unless specified on the prices sheets, the listed numbers of tests are 
estimated annual quantities and should be the basis of quotes 
provided.  The note on Lead/Copper for Drinking Water is indicating 
that in 2015 and 2018 only 55 tests are anticipated for those years. 

 

3.   Is the City's lab currently taking care of the Toxicity Testing with a separate 
contract directly with the aquatic laboratory or is this a subcontract test for 
your current contracted lab responsible for the effluent testing?  All tests 
listed in the bid are open for contract by the lowest, qualified, most 
responsive bidder.   

 

4.   For Biosolids testing, GC/MS is listed as the test method for pesticides and 
PCBs.  Can EPA 8081/8082 be substituted as an equal alternative method? 
Any test methods identified are the only methods to be used.  
Alternative testing methods may be considered only if they are 
identified in 40 CFR Part 136 as an acceptable analysis method.  

 

5.   For the Annual Priority Pollutant Testing and 2017 Bimonthly 
Effluent/Receiving Water Characterization cost sheet - there are 14 
Estimated Annual samples listed.  Is there a single effluent and receiving 

 



sample analyzed annually for this list of compounds then in Year 2017 there 
will an additional 12 samples for the Characterization making the total of 
14? At this time, provide a quote for the estimated 14 annual samples.   

 

6.   Industrial Waste line item for TPH-full Scan w/ C-grams:  Is this to include 
both the volatile fraction (TPH-gasoline) and the extractable fraction, or, just 
the extractable fraction covering the diesel, hydraulic oil, and motor oil 
extended range? Testing shall include both the volatile fraction (TPH-
gasoline) and the extractable fraction 

 

7.   Industrial Waste price sheet shows a line item for "Dioxin".  Is 2,3,7,8-TCDD 
the only isomer needed?  The potential exists to analyze for all Dioxin 
isomers (full range) 

 

8.   Is there an estimate of the number of industries that are sampled on a 
routine basis?  Approximately 40 on a monthly basis and an additional 
40 on an annual or semi-annual basis. 

 

9.   Under the Toxicity Testing Requirements (page 15, item # J) it is stated that 
the contractor is to provide a copy of their current QA/QC manual for 
themselves and the subcontractor.  The other test section requirements do 
not call for this to be submitted.  Does this only apply if the lab is bidding on 
the Toxicity testing?  No, the City will request QA/QC manuals from 
laboratories for all analysis performed.   

 

10.   The price sheet has a column for "Analytical Method".  In some instances 
the Method is already provided.  Are you requiring the responding labs to fill 
in all the open boxes with our Analytical Methods, or can we leave those 
blank?  If a specific method is listed it is identifying the only acceptable 
method the lab can use to run that test.  If no method is listed it is at 
the labs discretion to use the appropriate test method for the 
constituent being requested. 

 

11.   In some instances there can be long lists of constituents all falling under the 
same EPA Method (for ex: EPA 624, EPA 625, EPA 608).  Are we able to 
provide ONE PRICE for the entire Method?  Perhaps we can put that price 
on the first constituent in the list, and put "included" in the other boxes?  
Yes, one price can be provided for the method, but make sure it is 
clearly marked on the bid which constituents are included in the 
pricing for that method.   
 

12.   For the columns marked, "Turn Around Multipliers", are you asking for the 
multiplier as a percentage of the Unit Price?  For example:  Do I put 24-hour 



at 200% / 48-hour at 100% / 5-day at 30%, etc.?  The multiplier shall be 
listed as a percentage increase of the unit cost for each turn-around 
listed.   

 

13.   For the composite samples, I trust you have your own compositors and do 
not need the lab to provide them?  MUD Laboratory has its own 
compositors.   

 
14.   The scope refers to a consultant for NPDES testing.  Will City of Stockton 

collect all samples or do you expect the lab to collect samples as well as 
analyze samples?  The City will collect all samples. 

 

15.   Please provide additional information on the requirements for Taste (Flavor 
Threshold Test) on the price sheet titled, "Title 22 Drinking Water Source 
Water Compliance".  Standard Method 2160 B. Flavor Threshold Test 
(FTT) is required by the Regional Water Quality Control Board before, 
during and after chloramination. 

 
16.   If we are already testing TTHM and HAA, is SUVA a necessary test?  It is 

not a common compliance test.  Yes, it is needed for determining 
techniques for control of disinfection by-product precursors.   

 

17.   Are EDDs required for toxicity testing data, or is an electronic (pdf) 
laboratory report sufficient?  EDDs are required, along with pdf. 

 

18.   The scope of services detailed for the toxicity testing requirements and the 
pricing tables do not specify the type of test design. It is implied in item F 
that testing is to be on 100% effluent only, but clarification is requested.  For 
the purposes of chronic toxicity test pricing, should pricing be provided 
assuming that testing will be for 100% effluent only, 100% effluent plus a 
receiving water treatment, or a full dilution series (as indicated in the dilution 
table).  From Attachment A of the Specifications, paragraph V-B-7, 
Whole Effluent Toxicity Testing Requirements, Chronic Toxicity 
Testing, Dilutions:  For routine and accelerated chronic toxicity 
monitoring, it is not necessary to perform the test using a dilution 
series. The chronic toxicity testing shall be performed using 100% 
effluent and one control.  

 

19.   Item G states that toxicity testing is to eliminate ammonia related toxicity, 
but does not specify the means by which to accomplish this.  Ammonia 
related toxicity can be eliminated by different methods.  Moreover, the 
pricing table provides no row for pricing ammonia removal/mitigation 
treatments.  Should representative pricing be provided for this specification?  



Provide pricing that includes options for both, removing ammonia and 
not removing ammonia.   

 

20.   The bottom two rows of the toxicity testing pricing table lists acute toxicity 
testing and chronic toxicity testing, but does not specify the species.  Can 
clarification be provided as to what specific testing these rows correspond 
with?  See paragraph V. WHOLE EFFLUENT TOXICITY TESTING 
REQUIREMENTS for specific information.   

 

21.   The toxicity testing pricing table does not include rows for concurrent 
reference toxicant testing or rows for courier delivery charges.  Should these 
be added to the table?  The concurrent reference testing should be 
added to the pricing table.  Courier delivery charges should be 
included in the cost for analysis quoted and are not a separate line 
item.  

 

22.   General question for the group:  Is any of this industrial waste considered a 
"Non-Solid"?  All are wastewater samples. 

 

23.   One line item shows, "Metals - CAM-17".  Two lines later it shows, "TTLC 
Metals".  You have asked for the same number of tests to be performed 
(15). Do both need to be quoted?  Yes, quote both. 

 

24.   Another line items shows, "STLC Metals".  STLC is a more defined 
extraction process that is typically performed on just the TTLC metals that 
fail.  How many metals do you want quoted on this "STLC Metals" line item?  
Since we are unable to predict in advance how many TTLC metals will 
fail, we must assume STLC for all. 

 

25.   Please provide the names of the current contractor(s) performing 
Effluent/Receiving Water Testing, Biosolids, Title 22 Drinking Water Testing 
and Toxicity Testing.  Please include any subcontract laboratories for 
specialty analyses, such as Methylmercury, Asbestos, TBT and Taste.  This 
information is available through the Freedom of Information Act.  
Contact Stockton’s City Clerk’s office to file a formal public records 
request.   

 

26.   Please provide pricing from the current lab(s) presently doing these 
analyses for the City.  This information is available through the Freedom 
of Information Act.  Contact Stockton’s City Clerk’s office to file a 
formal public records request.   

 



27.   Please provide the names of laboratories who the City has sent this 
solicitation to.  The bid is posted to the City’s BidFlash page and is 
available to any respondent.   

 

28.   Which constituents are required for the NPDES line item "Standard 
Minerals"? Standard minerals shall include all major cations and 
anions and include verification that the analysis is complete (i.e., 
cation/anion balance). 

 

29.   Are 40CFR141 (drinking water 500 series) methods acceptable for NPDES 
compliance analysis for EDB/DBCP, Diquat, Endothall and Carbamates? 
Only if the constituent is not listed in Environmental Protection 
Agency , 40 CFR Parts 136, 260, 423, 430, and 435 

 

30.   On average, how many courier pick-ups are requested per week above and 
beyond the weekly Tues and Thurs afternoon pick-ups?  How much 
advance notice can the City provide for these pick-ups?  Courier pick-ups 
will be scheduled in advance whenever possible.   

 

31.   Does the City's in-house laboratory self-perform any of the analyses listed in 
the price tables?  Yes 

 

32.   May the bidder bid on selected items within a section, selected sections or 
must all bids include pricing for everything?  Bidders may choose to bid 
on selected sections only, but all items within that section must be 
bid.  Partial bids within sections will not be accepted.   

 

33.   Is the City willing to accept or allow CPI-based price increases at the time of 
renewal after the base 2-year period of the contract? At the time of 
contract extension, the City will consider CPI adjustments, but makes 
no guarantee of acceptance.   

 

34.   Will bidders located within the City of Stockton also receive the 2% County 
local preference in addition to the 5% local preference?  No, the 5% 
preference is applied to businesses located within the City of 
Stockton, while the 2% preference is applied to businesses within San 
Joaquin County.  There is no additive effect of the two.   

 

35.   Are there any other items required with the bid submission above and 
beyond what is listed in the Bidder's Checklist?  The RFP mentions ELAP 
Certificate, Report Example, References, QA Manuals for prime and sub, 
etc. but none of these are listed in the bidder checklist?  All the items 



listed in the specifications, whether contained in the Bidders Checklist 
or not should be made available upon request to the City. 

 

36.   Will the City consider a Hold Harmless clause that includes mutual or 
proportional indemnification?  No. 

 

37.   Will the City consider a Limit of Liability clause in the final contract? No, 
insurance requirements are included in the specifications and any 
business contracting with the City of Stockton will be expected to 
submit insurance according to those requirements.   

 

38.   Is a City Business License required prior to or at the time of award?  A 
current business license must be on file with the City of Stockton after 
notice of award, but prior to final contract execution. 

 
39.   In the Scope of Services, pg. 15 "Request for Sealed Bids", Item J says that 

all Contractors must provide a copy of their current Quality Control Manual.  
Are these to be provided upon award of the contract, or with our proposal 
package?  Quality Control manuals are to be provided with the 
proposal package.  Due to their potential size, the manuals can be 
accepted on CD, DVD, or Flash Drives in PDF format. 

 
40.   If we do not meet the Maximum Reporting Levels with our MRL but can 

meet them with our MDL is that acceptable?  Yes 
 
41.   What method is presently used to meet the 2 ug/L MRL for Acrolein? Per 40 

CFR 136, Appendix A, Method 603. 
 
 
 
 
POSTED 7-13-15 
THE FOLLOWING REQUEST ARRIVED AND THE SPREADSHEET IS 
POSTED ON BIDFLASH UNDER THE ‘PLANS, ATTACHMENTS AND 
AGENDAS’ SECTION. 
 
>>> "Adam Angulo" <adam@alpha-labs.com> 7/13/2015 2:25 PM >>> 
Good afternoon. 
Is there an Excel format that we can have access to for Attachment B Pricing Tables.  
This would allow us to provide a cleaner response with more legible responses, as well as 
provide ease in response method. 
Any help would be appreciated, thank you. 

 
 
 



POSTED 07-09-15 
 
1.  Communication  –  please send your communication  via email. 
 
2. Questions – the last day to make inquiries is July 16, 2015. 
 
3.  Answers – clarifications and answers will be posted by July 23, 2015. 
 
4. Bids due promptly by 2:00 pm, Thursday, July 30, 2015, City Clerk’s Office. 
 
 


